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TOWER REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT TRUST

ABOUT TOWER REIT

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR TANG HONG CHEONG YBHG DATO’ TAN ANG MENG

MR CHENG HSING YAO (ZHENG XINYAO) MS LIM TAU KIEN

PUAN NOORBAIZURA BINTI HERMEYNEY

MANAGER

GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd

MANAGER’S PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

Bukit Damansara

MANAGER’S REGISTERED ADDRESS

Bukit Damansara

COMPANY SECRETARY OF THE MANAGER

Chin Min Yann

Bukit Damansara

TRUSTEE

MTrustee Berhad 

PROPERTY MANAGER

Henry Butcher Malaysia (Mont Kiara)
Sdn Bhd

REGISTRAR

Services Sdn Bhd

Bukit Damansara

AUDITORS

KPMG PLT

Chartered Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS OF THE TRUST

Hong Leong Bank Berhad

Public Bank Berhad

WEBSITE
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FUND
INFORMATION

Name of Trust

Trust Type Income and growth

Trust Category

Term of Trust

Fund Performance Benchmark

The Manager intends to make semi

Authorised Investments

of TAV,

Financial Year End

Total Number of Units Issued
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OVERVIEW OF
PORTFOLIO

MENARA HLX
No. 3, Jalan Kia Peng
50450 Kuala Lumpur

PLAZA ZURICH
No. 12, Jalan Gelenggang
Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur

MENARA GUOCO
No. 6, Jalan Damanlela
Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur

Real Estate
Market Value

RM’000
% of Total 

Menara Guoco
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ASSETS
PROFILE
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2025

17%

2026

9%

2027

9%

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA
as at 30 June 2024

TENANTS MIX BY GROSS RENTAL INCOME
For the Month of June 2024

38%

1%

5%

9%

9%

11%
9%

2%

16%
Financial

Healthcare

Technology

Property

Financial

Healthcare

Technology

Property

19%

1%

8%

9%

11%
11%

6%

1%

34%

MAJOR TENANTS

Name
Trade

Sector
% of Total Net 

 
Bank Bhd services

Embassies 

ADDRESS

DESCRIPTION

park

PROPERTY TYPE/USE

AGE

TITLE DETAILS

ENCUMBRANCES

LIMITATION IN TITLE/INTEREST

TENURE

NET LETTABLE AREA

OCCUPANCY RATES *

PARKING SPACE

DATE OF ACQUISITION

ACQUISITION PRICE

MARKET VALUE

DATE OF LATEST VALUATION

NAME OF VALUER

NET BOOK VALUE

PROPERTY MANAGER

Sdn Bhd

* As at 30 June 2024

EXPIRY PROFILE
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ASSETS
PROFILE
cont’d
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2025

40%

2026

14%

2027

19%

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA
as at 30 June 2024

TENANTS MIX BY GROSS RENTAL INCOME
For the Month of June 2024

21%
17%

2%
19%

15%

12%

7%
1%

6%

Technology

Trading

Property
Finance

Manufacturing

Technology

Trading

Property
Finance

Manufacturing20%

17%

6%
14%

12%

7%

0%

2%

22%

MAJOR TENANTS

Name
Trade

Sector
% of Total Net 

services

Bhd & Asset Management Bhd services

Manufacturing

ADDRESS

DESCRIPTION

park

PROPERTY TYPE/USE

AGE

TITLE DETAILS

ENCUMBRANCES

Berhad

LIMITATION IN TITLE/INTEREST

TENURE

NET LETTABLE AREA

OCCUPANCY RATES *

PARKING SPACE

DATE OF ACQUISITION

ACQUISITION PRICE

MARKET VALUE

DATE OF LATEST VALUATION

NAME OF VALUER

NET BOOK VALUE

PROPERTY MANAGER

Sdn Bhd

* As at 30 June 2024

EXPIRY PROFILE
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Aecom Perunding Sdn Bhd and GuocoLand 

ASSETS
PROFILE
cont’d
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2025

11%

2026

47%

2027

39%

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA
as at 30 June 2024

TENANTS MIX BY GROSS RENTAL INCOME
For the Month of June 2024

18%

1%

13%
12%

13%

6%

1%

1%

35%
Manufacturing

Consultancy
Property
Insurance

Legal Firm

Technology
Others

Financial

Manufacturing

Consultancy
Property
Insurance

Legal Firm

Technology
Others

Financial

37%

12%13%

12%

6%
1%

1%
1%
17%

MAJOR TENANTS

Name
Trade 

Sector
% of Total Net 

 Manufacturing

 

Aecom Perunding Sdn Bhd

 Insurance

ADDRESS

DESCRIPTION

PROPERTY TYPE/USE

AGE

TITLE DETAILS

ENCUMBRANCES

Berhad

LIMITATION IN TITLE/INTEREST

TENURE

NET LETTABLE AREA

OCCUPANCY RATES *

DATE OF ACQUISITION

ACQUISITION PRICE

MARKET VALUE

DATE OF LATEST VALUATION

NAME OF VALUER

NET BOOK VALUE

PROPERTY MANAGER

Sdn Bhd    
    

 
* As at 30 June 2024

EXPIRY PROFILE
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

Dear Unitholders,

these headwinds to achieve growth and maintained our 

 

Despite global uncertainties and 
persistent challenges within the property 
sector, we successfully navigated these 
headwinds to achieve growth and 
maintained our commitment to delivering 
value to our unitholders.

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST12



CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

cont’d

STAYING COMMITTED TO ENHANCING VALUE 

Through proactive asset management and strategic 

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

 

SUSTAINABILITY AT THE CORE OF OUR STRATEGY

 

INCOME DISTRIBUTION 

OUR PROSPECTS 

APPRECIATION

for their dedication and hard work in navigating this 

TANG HONG CHEONG 
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Dear Unitholders,

The financial year ended 30 June 2024 (“FY2024”) 
was a year of recovery and resilience for Tower Real 
Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT” or the “Trust”), 

commercial real estate sector. Despite these challenges, 
Tower REIT has successfully navigated the year by 

and improvement in overall occupancy rate.

The following aims to provide all our stakeholders 
insight into the performance of the Trust, strategic 
initiatives conducted by the Manager throughout 
FY2024 and our prospects and plans moving forward. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Market Value as at 30 June 2024

Real Estate
Market Value 

RM’000

% of Total  
Real Estate 

Menara Guoco

  966,028  802,000 100

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

 
investment objective of the Trust is to provide 

 distributions, 
 Asset 

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST14



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

To achieve these

Maximising Value:

The Manager 

OPERATING LANDSCAPE

1

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Despite 

Gross Revenue: 

Net Rental Income: 

Total Comprehensive Income:

1

Annual Report 2024 15



Net

Area Date Cost

Incidental
cost/

Enhancement

Carrying 
Value

at 30-Jun-24
(prior to 

At Market 
Value

30-Jun-24
Fair Value

Adjustment
% of

Property RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 %

Menara Guoco

Total  966,028  593,100  36,081  629,181  802,000  172,820  100 

TENANT MIX BY GROSS RENTAL INCOME
FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2024

TENANT MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Financial Services
Trading

Oil & Gas Manufacturing

20% 17%

2%

8%

7%

4%

3%

10%

3%

6% 6%
10%

19%

27%

4%10%

15%

29%

Major Tenants as at 30 June 2024 Trade Sector

Manufacturing

 

Aecom Perunding Sdn Bhd

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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LEASE EXPIRY PROFILE

 2025  2026  2027

No. of
Tenants

% of Net 

Area
No. of

Tenants

% of Net 

Area
No. of

Tenants

% of Net 

Area

17

Menara Guoco 11

Total 33 68 32 70 20 67

INCOME DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION YIELD 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM ANY ISSUANCE OF NEW UNITS

DETAILS OF UTILISATION
Proposed Actual

RM’000 RM’000

Total 65,216 41,197

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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FUND PERFORMANCE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST18



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

RATIOS 

Interest expenses 

                                                                               
Notes:

The

 0.30
6/30/2023 9/30/2023 1/1/2024 3/31/2024 6/30/2024

 0.40

 0.50

 0.60

 0.70

 0.80

 0.90

 1.00

-

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Volume (Units)Price (RM)

MARKET UNIT PRICE AND TRADING PERFORMANCE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d

Annual Report 2024 19



IPO 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

UNIT PRICE PERFORMANCE RM’000 RM RM RM RM RM

Note:

ANNUAL TOTAL RETURN 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Average Unit Price
                   

AVERAGE TOTAL RETURN 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST20



OPERATIONS REVIEW

MENARA HLX

MENARA HLX OCCUPANCY RATES

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

21%
25% 26% 31%

35%

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

1%

9%

16%

9%

11%
9%

5%
2%

38%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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PLAZA ZURICH 

PLAZA ZURICH OCCUPANCY RATES

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

61%
66%67% 67%

76%

0

30

60

90

 

Leong Investment Bank 

In the 

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

17%

19%

15%
6%

12%

7%

1%
2%

21%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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MENARA GUOCO 

MENARA GUOCO OCCUPANCY RATES

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

95%
88%

0%

89% 97%

0

30

60

90

120

Menara Guoco won the
 review, Menara Guoco 

 Agronom 

TENANTS MIX BY NET LETTABLE AREA AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

35%

13%

13%

12%

6%
1%
1%1%

18%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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ACHIEVEMENTS

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
Tower REIT’  Risk Management and 

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH 

MOVING FORWARD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
cont’d
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MANAGER’S
REPORT

THE TRUST

 the Main Market of Bursa 

of achieving an
has been no ’s 

THE MANAGER

, asset 

MANAGER’S FEES AND COMMISSION

and services 

fee and performance fee 

comprise 

REIT in the 

GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd (the “Manager”), the Manager of Tower Real Estate Investment 
Trust (“Tower REIT” or the “Trust”), is pleased to submit the Manager’s Report and the audited 

30 June 2024.
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SOFT COMMISSION

DIRECTORS

The Directors who served on the Board of 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

 review, there were no arrangements for the Directors of the

contract made  is a 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

 Number of Units

As at 
01.07.2023 Acquired Sold

As at
30.6.2024

* Units

the units of

MANAGER’S
REPORT
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST26



MANAGER’S
REPORT

cont’d

OTHER INFORMATION

were made out, the 

 the date of this report, the Manager is not aware

statements of Tower REIT

 Tower REIT which has arisen since the end of the

 as 

date of this report, the Manager is not aware of 

end of the 

Annual Report 2024 27



MANAGER’S
REPORT
cont’d

STATEMENT BY MANAGER

 REIT Management Sdn Bhd, being the Manager of Tower REIT

Signed in accordance with a

NOORBAIZURA BINTI HERMEYNEY YBHG DATO’ TAN ANG MENG
Director Director

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST28



DIRECTORS’
PROFILE

MR TANG HONG CHEONG
Chairman

MR CHENG HSING YAO 
(ZHENG XINYAO)

Mr Cheng is the Group Chief Executive Officer of 

 

Mr Cheng was appointed to the Board of GLM REIT on 

Management Committee and Nominating Committee of 

Annual Report 2024 29



DIRECTORS’
PROFILE
cont’d

PUAN NOORBAIZURA
BINTI HERMEYNEY

 

YBHG DATO’ TAN ANG MENG 

appointed as Chief Executive Officer of Fraser & Neave 

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST30



DIRECTORS’
PROFILE

cont’d

MS LIM TAU KIEN

Notes:

Annual Report 2024 31



SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

ABOUT THIS SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

The Manager

This

our corporate website

stewardship

Boundary

Report Content

Sustainability 
Context

 context 

Materiality

topics

Stakeholder 
Inclusiveness

Completeness

Reliability of  reviewed this 

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST32



SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d

SUSTAINABLE REAL ESTATE WITH TOWER REIT

 

maintaining high

 

 

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

EESG
with Tower REIT

Oversees the 

measures

Recommends sustainability 
commitments, strategy

Implements sustainability 

improvement in sustainability 
performance and recommends 

Approves sustainability 
commitments, strategy and 

Tower REIT

Reviews and endorses the 
Sustainability Statement and its 

overseeing the 
management of the 

sustainability strategy and 
EESG risks
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SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d

TOWER REIT’S STAKEHOLDER COMMUNITY

Stakeholder 
Group Interest Areas Engagement Methods Frequency of 

Engagement

Investors and 
unitholders REIT 

websites 

Trustees

Regulatory 
bodies

Audits

Tenants

Employees

Training programmes and other 

Suppliers and
contractors process

Ongoing

Performance reviews As

Industry peers

Media

Announcements on the Bursa 
 and corporate website

Media networking sessions

Local  engagements

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST34



TOWER REIT’S MATERIALITY LANDSCAPE

Commitment to

Improvement

Aligning withStakeholder
Engagement

We regularly review 
and refine our 
understanding of 
material EESG issues as 
part of the materiality 
process. This continuous 
journey drives our 
sustainability 
performance and 
supports our mission to 
create stakeholder 
value.

This approach to 
materiality enables 
alignment with 
stakeholders' 
expectations, enhances 
our resilience and 
fortifies our commitment 
to responsible real 
estate management. 
Integrating these 
insights into our 
strategic framework 
creates stakeholder value 
and promotes 
sustainable prosperity.

We mapped each 
identified material matter 
against the United Nations 
Sustainable Development 
Goals ("UNSDGs"). This 
alignment allows our 
efforts to meet 
stakeholders' expectations 
and address global 
challenges. Targeting key 
issues that contribute to 
achieving these goals 
drives meaningful change 
and fosters a sustainable 
future for our 
communities and the 
environment.

We continuously 
evaluate the 
materiality of 
identified factors, 
scrutinise any shifts 
in their potential 
impact, and adapt 
our strategies 
accordingly so that 
our approach remains 
relevant to enhancing 
our business 
sustainability.

This process involved 
consultations with 
stakeholders, including 
investors, tenants, 
employees, and 
community 
representatives. These 
engagements helped 
pinpoint the key issues 
influencing our 
strategic decisions and 
shaping our 
sustainability 
initiatives.

Material Applicable GRI 
Indicators

Relevant 
Stakeholders

Relevant 
UNSDGs

1 Tenant 
Economic Impacts

Tenants

  neighbourhood support, 

Approach
GRI   

 
for 

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d

Annual Report 2024 35



Material Applicable GRI 
Indicators

Relevant 
Stakeholders

Relevant 
UNSDGs

Management
GRI 
Approach Contractors

the 

Approach Tenants
   

severe injuries, 

Management 
Approach

Investors, 

 

management to conserve 
water 

Environment 
& 
Management

Approach
Investors, 

 

  

 

to promote 

7 Business Ethics GRI 
Approach

Investors, 

Trustee, 

Bodies, 

Contractors 
and Tenants

 with corporate governance 

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST36



Material Applicable GRI 
Indicators

Relevant 
Stakeholders

Relevant 
UNSDGs

Engagement Approach
  

Approach

Presence

 

, 
Approach

Tenants
for a safe and

of 

Transparency

Safety
Supply Chain
Management

Opportunity

Impact on Tower REIT

Community
Engagement

Management

Employment

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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ECONOMIC EXCELLENCE

FOSTERING INDUSTRY ADVANCEMENT THROUGH COLLABORATIVE PARTNERSHIPS

and 

award schemes, 

ETHICAL BUSINESS CONDUCT

Tower REIT takes measures 

Ethical 
Business
Conduct

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST38



Whistleblowing Policy

, 

Reportable 
incidents

SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN

 service providers, ranging from maintenance service 
providers and contractors

 procedures for outsourcing 

, and

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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-making

Our Code of Ethics extends to  human rights, 

 and ISO 

Laundering Act

Buying Local 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

 

MONITORING AND 
CONTROLLING ENERGY USE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS ON 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

MANAGING WASTE AND 
POLLUTION 

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d
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ENERGY AND CLIMATE ACTION

and

data

Chiller Plants

 

Progress to Date

Menara Guoco
temperature in Menara 

Plaza Zurich
the speed of condenser pumps was reduced from  

Menara HLX
of the 

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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GREEN BUILDING SOLUTIONS

as 

to and award 

tenants 

Highlights of Green Features at Menara Guoco

Building Design & Material 

Building Energy Index 
(“BEI”)

 per annum for a 

Sensors

 machines at the refuse chamber

Carbon Dioxide Monitoring 
and Control amount of fresh air to occupants

Building Management 
System & Metering System

Desiccant Heat Recovery 
Wheel

The 

Non-Chemical Water 
Treatment System

The

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d
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Condensate Water 
Recovery And Use

up water 

Fire System Water Recycling 
During Regular 

WATER MANAGEMENT

to 

WASTE MANAGEMENT

promote 

Segregation 
and 

Recycling

Tenant 
Engagement

Operational 
Practices

Partnership
with Waste

Management
 Services

Paper Waste 
Reduction

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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NURTURING EXCELLENCE WITH OUR PEOPLE

emphasising
, empowerment and 

Tower REIT’s People Management Focus Areas

Talent attraction 
and retention

Learning and 
development

Workplace
culture

Employee health
 and wellbeing

Communication 
and feedback

REWARDING OUR PEOPLE

A PROMISE TO A CAREER

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d
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st

The

approach fosters

EMBRACING DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION

, career 
 an environment that respects and 

 to serve our diverse 

Tower REIT emphasises

The

, ergonomics and 

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS

 

SUSTAINABLE VENTURES AND INVESTMENT GROWTH

focused

Our

Environmental 
Management

Systems

Sustainable
Property 

Management

Tenant
Engagement

Carbon
Footprint 
Reduction

Sustainable
Supply Chain

Corporate
Social

 Responsibility

ATTRACT STRONG
COVENANT
 TENANTS

TENANT 
RETENTION 
STRATEGY

IMPROVE 
OCCUPANCY 

RATE

ACCESS TO 
GREEN 

FINANCING

COST 
CONTAINMENTS 

INITIATIVES

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d
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TENANT RETENTION STRATEGY

 

tenants’ diverse needs and

Tower REIT’s Tenant

VALUE CREATION THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE TENANT JOURNEY

enhancing our

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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Safety Value-add

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

EMPOWERING TENANT ENGAGEMENT 

CYBERSECURITY AND DATA PRIVACY

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST48



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

Assurance undertaken

subjected to an

Subject 

 

No. Common Sustainability Common Indicators

taken

Community /  
Society 

Diversity 
 

Energy management 

Health and safety  

 
and standards 

Supply chain 
management 

Data privacy  
and security 

Water 

Scope

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d
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DATA PERFORMANCE

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa (Anti-corruption)

Bursa C1(a) Percentage of employees who
have received training on anti-corruption by
employee category

Senior Management Percentage 0.00

Management Percentage 100.00

Executives Percentage 50.00

Non-Executives Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(b) Percentage of operations
assessed for corruption-related risks

Percentage 100.00

Bursa C1(c) Confirmed incidents of
corruption and action taken

Number 0

Bursa (Supply chain management)

Bursa C7(a) Proportion of spending on local
suppliers

Percentage 100.00

Bursa (Energy management)

Bursa C4(a) Total energy consumption Megawatt 8,140.68

Bursa (Water)

Bursa C9(a) Total volume of water used Megalitres 115.557700

Bursa (Labour practices and standards)

Bursa C6(a) Total hours of training by
employee category

Senior Management Hours 16

Management Hours 17

Executives Hours 34

Non-Executives Hours 0

Bursa C6(b) Percentage of employees that
are contractors or temporary staff

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C6(c) Total number of employee
turnover by employee category

Senior Management Number 0

Management Number 3

Executives Number 1

Non-Executives Number 0

Bursa C6(d) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning human rights
violations

Number 0

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
cont’d
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SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

cont’d

Bursa (Diversity)

Bursa C3(a) Percentage of employees by
gender and age group, for each employee
category

Age Group by Employee Category

Senior Management Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Senior Management Between 30-50 Percentage 100.00

Senior Management Above 50 Percentage 0.00

Management Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Management Between 30-50 Percentage 66.67

Management Above 50 Percentage 33.33

Executives Under 30 Percentage 25.00

Executives Between 30-50 Percentage 75.00

Executives Above 50 Percentage 0.00

Non-Executives Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Non-Executives Between 30-50 Percentage 0.00

Non-Executives Above 50 Percentage 0.00

Gender Group by Employee Category

Senior Management Male Percentage 0.00

Senior Management Female Percentage 100.00

Management Male Percentage 0.00

Management Female Percentage 100.00

Executives Male Percentage 0.00

Executives Female Percentage 100.00

Non-Executives Male Percentage 0.00

Non-Executives Female Percentage 0.00

Bursa C3(b) Percentage of directors by
gender and age group

Male Percentage 60.00

Female Percentage 40.00

Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Between 30-50 Percentage 20.00

Above 50 Percentage 80.00

Bursa (Health and safety)

Bursa C5(a) Number of work-related
fatalities

Number 0

Bursa C5(b) Lost time incident rate ("LTIR") Rate 0.00

Bursa C5(c) Number of employees trained
on health and safety standards

Number 5

Bursa (Community/Society)

Bursa C2(a) Total amount invested in the
community where the target beneficiaries
are external to the listed issuer

MYR 0.00

Bursa C2(b) Total number of beneficiaries of
the investment in communities

Number 0

Bursa (Data privacy and security)

Bursa C8(a) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of
customer privacy and losses of customer
data

Number 0

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,

THE MANAGER OF TOWER REIT 

the 

account 

GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd (the “Manager”), the Manager of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower 
REIT” or the “Trust”), has adopted an overall corporate governance framework that is designed to meet best 

 
the performance of the Manager and consequently, to the success of Tower REIT which it manages. 

 diligence, and in the best 
 the assets 

 of unitholders. In this regard, the Manager will endeavour to 

Tower REIT is regulated Listed Real Estate 
Investment Trusts (“REIT”) Guidelines (“REIT Guidelines”) and Capital Markets and Services Act 2007 (“CMSA”) 
as well as MMLR”). 
This Corporate Governance Overview, Risk Management and Internal Control Statement (“Statement”) 

(“FY2024”) as guided by the principles set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 
(“MCCG”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

 The 
REIT and the 

 In discharging its the Board and those 
in the Board Charter, 

 
 The 

performance of 

 To discharge its oversight  independent 
 risk management to the Board Audit & Risk Management 

of new Directors, members of

 
 

REIT 

corporate 

 Independent insights, unbiased and independent 
views, advice and judgment to the 

are 
of Tower REIT, the 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

  cont’d

the the Manager take a progressive approach in 

 The Board observes the

B. 

 the members of the Board are set out in the

The Board is of the view that the
 exercise sound judgement without fear or favour and provide check

their unbiased views so as to foster  performed their 

 

with

 Based on the review

are set out in the Board Audit

  The TOR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

cont’d

  Chair, Independent Non

 Director

and 

 Appointments

of Candidates with
Candidates 

Assessment Criteria 

 Candidates

checks

NC to the Board

 the 
Board 

  In assessing the candidates for the strategic and 

their F&
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

cont’d

  cont’d

Leong 

  In the case of the CEO, the

  

to the Board

  
Companies Act recommend to the Board the 

  For Board 

 
of Directors for 

membership

 against Assessment Criteria

 the NC to the Board

the Board
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

cont’d

groom 

 The when 

 The NC

 and 

 of experience and 

Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

E. Independence

 The Manager
the independence of

 The ID  of his or her 

 The
carried out for  objective judgment to Board 

F. Commitment

 The Directors are aware of their
 
 

convened on

pursuant to the MMLR

migrated to 
provide, amongst 

and corporate issues, updates on the 
performance of Tower REIT 

and guidance
 

and
the Chairman of the

 an interest in the subject 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

F. Commitment  cont’d

 The Board 

Directors

Mr Cheng 

 The Board recognises

 Continuing 

with Senior Management of the Manager is  

governance, risk

Bursa
the Directors of the
one of the

 The Board is
 

 In assessing the training needs determined that 
appropriate training programmes covering matters on corporate governance, 

REIT, be recommended and arranged for the Directors to enhance 

 Manager’s businesses, 

Corporate Governance, ESG  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  cont’d

G.  Strengthening Corporate Governance Culture

Tower REIT 

 Manager and it provides a guidance 
on how to prevent

  The ABC

 of the BARMC as the person to whom reports of

EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises
and risk management framework  of Tower REIT and interest of the 

The Board

Accountability and Audit

has used the 

in 

TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST60



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT  cont’d

Accountability and Audit  cont’d

B

must be 

 The 

the 

C. Internal Control 

 procedures and processes 

 The Manager does not
IA Department of  Board in discharging its 

management of risks

 The Manager takes cognisance  auditors, 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT  cont’d

Accountability and Audit  cont’d

D. Management and Decision-Making Processes

are in 

 The Board has appraised and is of the 
has received assurances from the Director of the Manager and the 

E. Risk Management

 impact on the achievement of 

risks to 

strategies 

avoiding
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT  cont’d

Accountability and Audit  cont’d

E. Risk Management  cont’d

and 

are not 

 REIT 

with

 Notes to 

INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

A. Disclosure

B. Dialogue with Unitholders and Investors 

 The Board 

and investors can have an overview of Tower REIT’s performance and 

on the Tower
to make the
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW,
cont’d

INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS  cont’d

B. Dialogue with Unitholders and Investors  cont’d

 In

 The Board regards 

meet and communicate with the Board of Directors 
of the 
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BOARD AUDIT &

CONSTITUTION

The 

of 

, the management of risk 

 ensure that the interests 

COMPOSITION

Dato’ Tan Ang Meng

Ms

Mr Cheng 

SECRETARY

AUTHORITY

 Manager in managing Tower REIT within its Terms of 
Reference  
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BOARD AUDIT &
cont’d

MEETINGS

Issues

interest, such member abstains from reviewing

present must be Independent Directors

concerns

ACTIVITIES

Member
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BOARD AUDIT &
cont’d

ACTIVITIES  cont’d

prior to submission 

separate 

of the audit, 

and management’s 

respect of services provided to 

Tower 

reported to
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BOARD AUDIT &
cont’d

The IA 

Committee in the 
management framework of the Manager in that an 

responses 

The cost incurred for the the Manager which amounted to 
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Note 2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Plant and equipment 3 4,925 7,963
Investment properties 4 802,000 797,200

Total non-current assets 806,925 805,163

Trade and other receivables 5 3,847 1,747
Cash and cash equivalents 6 26,846 1,324

Total current assets 30,693 3,071

Total assets 837,618 808,234

Represented by:
Unitholders’ funds

Unitholders’ capital 7 350,025 285,345
Undistributed income – realised 61,890 60,095
Undistributed income – unrealised 8 158,165 155,631

570,080 501,071

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 8,105 9,116
Borrowings 10 232,312 260,292
Deferred tax liability 11 17,291 17,279

Total non-current liabilities 257,708 286,687

Trade and other payables 9 9,830 9,476
Borrowings 10 - 11,000

Total current liabilities 9,830 20,476

Total liabilities 267,538 307,163

Total unitholders’ funds and liabilities 837,618 808,234

Net asset value 570,080 501,071

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
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Note 2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Net asset value (“NAV”)
Before income distribution 570,080 501,071
After income distribution* 566,300 500,314

Number of units in circulation (’000) 7 490,875 280,500

NAV per unit (RM)
- Before income distribution 1.1614 1.7863
- After income distribution* 1.1537 1.7836

*	 after proposed final income distribution of 0.77 sen per unit (2023: 0.27 sen per unit)

The notes on pages 76 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
cont’d
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Note 2024 2023
RM’000  RM’000

Revenue 12 37,036 33,871
Property operating expenses 13 (16,960) (17,254)

Net rental income 20,076 16,617
Change in fair value of investment properties 4 122 (21,533)
Net loss on impairment of trade receivables (150) -
Other income 325 38
Interest income 136 64

Total income/(expense) 20,509 (4,814)

Manager’s fees 14 (2,345) (2,215)
Trustee’s fee 15 (152) (156)
Auditors’ fees (105) (78)
Administrative expenses (1,110) (361)
Valuation fee (104) (65)
Interest expense (13,374) (12,064)

Total expenses (17,190) (14,939)

Income/(Loss) before tax 3,319 (19,753)
Taxation 16 2,412 2,153

Net income/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 5,731 (17,600)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year is made up as follows:
Realised 3,197 1,780
Unrealised 2,534 (19,380)

5,731 (17,600)

Earnings/(Loss) per unit (sen)
Realised 1.07 0.63
Unrealised   0.85  (6.91)

17 1.92 (6.28)

The notes on pages 76 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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              Undistributed income

Note
Unitholders’

capital

Non-
Distributable

- unrealised
Distributable

- realised Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 2022 285,345 175,011 61,008 521,364
Operations for the year ended 30 June 2023
Net (loss)/income for the year - (19,380) 1,780 (17,600)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - (19,380) 1,780 (17,600)
Unitholders’ transactions
Distribution to unitholders

- 2022 final 18 - - (1,823) (1,823)
- 2023 interim 18 - - (870) (870)

Decrease in net assets resulting from unitholders’ 
transactions - - (2,693) (2,693)

At 30 June 2023/1 July 2023 285,345 155,631 60,095 501,071

Operations for the year ended 30 June 2024
Net income for the year - 2,534 3,197 5,731

Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,534 3,197 5,731
Unitholders’ transactions
Issuance of rights units 7 65,216 - - 65,216
Establishment and issuance expenses 7 (536) - - (536)
Distribution to unitholders

- 2023 final 18 - - (757) (757)
- 2024 interim 18 - - (645) (645)

Increase in net assets resulting from unitholders’ 
transactions 64,680 - (1,402) 63,278

At 30 June 2024 350,025 158,165 61,890 570,080

Note 7 Note 8

The notes on pages 76 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN NET ASSET VALUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Income/(Loss) before tax 3,319 (19,753)

Adjustments for:
Change in fair value of investment properties (122) 21,533
Depreciation 819 792
Interest expense 13,374 12,064
Net loss on impairment of trade receivables 150 -
Interest income (136) (64)

Operating profit before changes in working capital 17,404 14,572

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 174 (1,112)
Trade and other payables (657) 1,486

Net cash from operating activities 16,921 14,946

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of plant and equipment (2,459) (2,789)
Interest received 136 64

Net cash used in investing activities (2,323) (2,725)

Cash flows from financing activities
Distribution paid to unitholders (1,402) (2,693)
Interest paid (13,154) (11,847)
Proceeds from issuance of rights units 65,216 -
Establishment and issuance expenses (536) -
(Repayment)/Drawdown of revolving credit (11,000) 1,900
Repayment of term loan (28,200) -

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 10,924 (12,640)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,522 (419)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,324 1,743

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26,846 1,324

The notes on pages 76 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following statement of financial position 
amounts:

2024 2023
Note RM’000 RM’000

Deposit with a licensed bank 6 24,000 -
Short term deposit 6 2,300 -
Cash and bank balances 6 546 1,324

26,846 1,324

The notes on pages 76 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
cont’d
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Tower Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”) is a Malaysian-domiciled real estate investment trust constituted pursuant 
to the principal Deed dated 17 February 2006 as amended and restated by the restated Deed dated 29 May 2014 and the 
second restated Deed dated 23 October 2019 (“the Deed”) between GLM REIT Management Sdn. Bhd. (“the Manager”) and 
MTrustee Berhad (“the Trustee”). The Deed is regulated by the Securities Commission (“SC”) Guidelines on Listed Real Estate 
Investment Trusts (“REITs”), the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), 
the Rules of the Depository and taxation laws and rulings. Tower REIT was listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities on 12 April 2006.

The address of the principal place of business of the Manager is at Level 13, Guoco Tower, Damansara City, 6 Jalan 
Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur.

The principal activity of Tower REIT is to own or invest in real estate and real estate-related assets, whether directly or 
indirectly through the ownership of single-purpose companies of which principal assets comprise real estate with the 
primary objectives of achieving an attractive level of return from rental income and of achieving medium to long term capital 
growth. There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the year.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of GLM REIT Management Sdn. Bhd. on 5 August 2024.

1.	 Basis of preparation

	 (a)	 Statement of compliance

		  The financial statements of Tower REIT have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Deed dated 
17 February 2006 as amended and restated by the restated Deed dated 29 May 2014 and the second restated 
deed dated 23 October 2019, the SC Guidelines on Listed REITs, applicable securities laws, MFRS Accounting 
Standards as issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MFRS Accounting Standards”) and IFRS 
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”). 
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities. 

		  The following are accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of the MFRS Accounting Standards that 
have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by Tower 
REIT:

MFRS Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2024
l	 Amendments to MFRS 16, Leases – Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
l	 Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements – Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 

and Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
l	 Amendments to MFRS 107, Statement of Cash Flows and MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – 

Supplier Finance Arrangements

NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

cont’d

1.	 Basis of preparation  cont’d

	 (a)	 Statement of compliance  cont’d

MFRS Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2025
l	 Amendments to MFRS 121, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates – Lack of Exchangeability

MFRS Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2026
l	 Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments and MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – 

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

MFRS Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2027
l	 MFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
l	 MFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

MFRS Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after a date yet to be confirmed
l	 Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and 

Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

		  Tower REIT plans to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, interpretations and amendments:

		  l	 From the annual period beginning on 1 July 2024 for the amendments that are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, except for amendments to MFRS 16, Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale 
and Leaseback.

		  l	 From the annual period beginning on 1 July 2025 for the amendments that are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

		  l	 From the annual period beginning on 1 July 2026 for the amendments that are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

		  l	 From the annual period beginning on 1 July 2027 for the amendments that are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 except for MFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 
Disclosures.

		  The initial application of the accounting standards, interpretations or amendments are not expected to have any 
material financial impacts to the current period and prior period financial statements of Tower REIT. 

	 (b)	 Basis of measurement

		  The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment properties which 
are measured at its fair value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they 
arise.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

1.	 Basis of preparation  cont’d

	 (c)	 Functional and presentation currency

		  These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is Tower REIT’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in RM has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

	 (d)	 Use of estimates and judgements

		  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRS Accounting Standards requires management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

		  Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

		  There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than those significant 
unobservable inputs as disclosed in Note 4 - Investment properties.

2.	 Changes in material accounting policies

	 2.1	 Material accounting policy information

		  Tower REIT adopted amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements and MFRS Practice 
Statement 2 – Disclosures of Accounting Policies from 1 January 2023. The amendments require the disclosure of 
‘material’, rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application 
of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting 
policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

		  Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the Tower REIT’s accounting policies, it impacted the 
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements. The material accounting policy information is 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements where relevant.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

cont’d

3.	 Plant and equipment

Fittings

Capital 
Work-in-
Progress Total

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cost
At 1 July 2022 7,893 - 7,893
Additions 40 2,749 2,789
Transfer to investment properties 4 - (133) (133)

At 30 June 2023/1 July 2023 7,933 2,616 10,549
Additions 247 2,212 2,459
Transfer to investment properties 4 - (4,678) (4,678)

At 30 June 2024 8,180 150 8,330

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2022 1,794 - 1,794
Charge for the year 792 - 792

At 30 June 2023/1 July 2023 2,586 - 2,586
Charge for the year 819 - 819

At 30 June 2024 3,405 - 3,405

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2022 6,099 - 6,099

At 30 June 2023/1 July 2023 5,347 2,616 7,963

At 30 June 2024 4,775 150 4,925

	 3.1	 Material accounting policy information

		  (a)	 Recognition and measurement

			   Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

			   Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

3.	 Plant and equipment  cont’d

	 3.1	 Material accounting policy information  cont’d

		  (b)	 Depreciation

			   Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component of an item of plant and equipment from the date that they are available for use. Capital work in 
progress are not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use. 

			   The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

			   l	 Fittings	 10 years

4.	Investment  properties

2024 2023
Note RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 797,200 818,600
Transfer from plant and equipment 3 4,678 133
Changes in fair value of investment properties 122 (21,533)

At 30 June 802,000 797,200

Description of 
property

Tenure
of land Location

Existing
use Fair value

At
cost

Percentage of
fair value to

net asset value
RM’000 RM’000 %

2024
Menara HLX Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office and Retail 327,600 241,508 57
Plaza Zurich* Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office and Retail 225,000 141,963 39
Menara Guoco* Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office 249,400 245,710 44

802,000 629,181

2023
Menara HLX Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office and Retail 324,000 237,969 65
Plaza Zurich* Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office and Retail 224,000 140,976 45
Menara Guoco* Freehold Kuala Lumpur Office 249,200 245,558 50

797,200 624,503

	 *	 These properties have been charged as security to the bank for borrowings as disclosed in Note 10.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

cont’d

4.	Investment  properties  cont’d

	 The operating lease payments to be received are as follows:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Less than one year 23,596 21,092
One to two years 14,258 14,990
Two to three years 3,541 7,937

Total undiscounted lease payments 41,395 44,019

	 Fair value information

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2024
Menara HLX - - 327,600 327,600
Plaza Zurich - - 225,000 225,000
Menara Guoco - - 249,400 249,400

- - 802,000 802,000

2023
Menara HLX - - 324,000 324,000
Plaza Zurich - - 224,000 224,000
Menara Guoco - - 249,200 249,200

- - 797,200 797,200

	L evel 3 fair value

	 The following table shows a reconciliation of Level 3 fair values:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 797,200 818,600
Enhancements 4,678 133
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss 122 (21,533)

At 30 June 802,000 797,200
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

4.	Investment  properties  cont’d

	 The following are the valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values within Level 3, as well as the 
significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation models:

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable inputs 
and fair value measurement

The investment method entails the 
determination of the probable gross 
annual rental the property is capable 
of producing and deducting therefrom 
the outgoings to arrive at the annual 
net income. The annual net income is 
capitalised using yield rate to arrive at 
the capital value of the property.

Expected market rental rate (p.s.f):
 
i)	 Office: RM2.13 – RM9.00 
	 (2023: RM2.13 – RM9.20) 

ii)	 Retail: RM2.30 – RM10.06 
(2023: RM2.30 – RM10.35)

Outgoing (p.s.f):
RM1.18 – RM1.55 
(2023: RM1.20 – RM1.50)

Term yield:
5.50% -5.75% 
(2023: 5.50% - 5.75%)

Reversionary yield: 
5.75% – 6.00% 
(2023: 5.75% – 6.00%) 

Void periods:
2.25% - 10.00% 
(2023: 2.50% - 10.00%) 

The estimated fair value would 
increase (decrease) if:

•	 Expected net rental income 
were higher (lower);

•	 Void periods were shorter 
(longer); and

•	 Expected yield were lower 
(higher).

	 Valuation processes applied by the Manager for Level 3 fair value

	 The fair value of investment properties is determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate 
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued. In 
relying on the valuation reports, the Manager has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the valuation method 
and estimates are reflective of current market condition. 

	 The last valuations by an independent valuer were done on 30 June 2024 for Menara HLX, Menara Guoco and Plaza 
Zurich and are compliant with the requirements of the SC Guidelines on Listed REITs to perform valuation at least once 
a financial year.

	 Highest and best use

	 Tower REIT’s investment properties are office buildings. The valuation of each property reflects the highest and best 
use as these properties are located on prime land in the city centre.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

cont’d

4.	Investment  properties  cont’d

	 4.1	 Material accounting policy information

		  Investment properties are measured subsequently at fair value with any changes therein recognised in profit or 
loss for the period in which they arise.

5.	 Trade and other receivables

2024 2023
Note RM’000 RM’000

Trade receivables 459 487
Other receivables and deposits 837 474
Prepayments 127 786
Real Property Gains Tax (“RPGT”) refundable 16 2,424 -

3,847 1,747

6.	 Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Deposit with a licensed bank 24,000 -
Short-term deposits 2,300 -
Cash and bank balances 546 1,324

26,846 1,324

	 Included in the cash and cash equivalents are balances arising from normal business transactions with a company 
related to the Manager, amounting to:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Cash and cash equivalents 24,535 1,306
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

7.	 Unitholders’ capital

Number 
of Units Amount

Number 
of units Amount

2024 2024 2023 2023
’000 RM’000 ’000 RM’000

Issued and fully paid-up units 280,500 285,345 280,500 285,345
At 1 July
Issuance of Rights Units pursuant to Rights Issue 

(210,375,000 units of RM0.31 each) (Note 7.1) 210,375 65,216 - -
Establishment and issuance expenses (Note 7.1) - (536) - -

At 30 June 490,875 350,025 280,500 285,345

	 7.1	 On 28 May 2024, Tower REIT has issued 210,375,000 new units by way of a renounceable rights issue and has 
raised gross proceeds of RM65,216,000. The expenses in relations to rights issue (professional fees, regulatory 
fees and other incidental expenses) amounting to RM536,000 has been capitalised from unitholders’ capital 
which is permitted under MFRS 132 Financial instruments: Presentation.

	 As at 30 June 2024, the Manager did not hold any units in Tower REIT. The related parties of the Manager held units in 
Tower REIT as follows:

	 2024 	 2023
Number
of units

Market
value

Number
of units

Market
value

’000 RM’000 ’000 RM’000

Direct unitholdings in Tower REIT of the related  
parties of the Manager:

GLM Equities Sdn. Bhd. 163,548 53,153 60,769 25,219
Hong Leong Assurance Berhad 101,974 33,142 57,771 23,975
Asia Fountain Investment Company Limited 24,500 7,963 14,000 5,810
Associated Land Sendirian Berhad 41,466 13,476 13,409 5,565
Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad 10,302 3,348 5,887 2,443

	 The market value is determined by multiplying the number of units with the market closing price of RM0.325 (2023: 
RM0.415) per unit as at 30 June 2024.
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8.	 Unrealised undistributed income

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Cumulative net change arising from fair value movement of:
- investment properties 158,165 155,631

9.	 Trade and other payables

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Non-current
Tenants’ deposits 9.1 8,105 9,116

8,105 9,116

Current
Trade
Trade payables 61 1,562
Tenants’ deposits 9.1 4,720 2,330
Contract liabilities 9.3 908 590

5,689 4,482

Non-trade
Other payables and accrued expenses 9.2 4,141 4,994

Total current 9,830 9,476

Total 17,935 18,592
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9.	 Trade and other payables  cont’d

	 9.1 	 Included in tenants’ deposits are rental deposits received from companies related to the Manager, amounting to:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Payable within 12 months 705 480
Payable after 12 months 631 786

1,336 1,266

	 9.2 	 Included in other payables and accrued expenses are amounts due to the Manager and the Trustee of RM235,333 
(2023: RM195,036) and RM14,045 (2023: RM12,358) respectively which are unsecured, interest free and payable 
monthly in arrears.

	 9.3	 The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from tenants, for which this is 
recognised as revenue over time. The contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue over a period 
of 3 months.

10.	 Borrowings

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Non-current
Term loan 10.1 232,971 261,171
Transaction costs for term loan (659) (879) 

232,312 260,292

Current 
Revolving credit 10.2 - 11,000

232,312 271,292

Gearing ratio 27.73% 33.57%

	 Plaza Zurich and Menara Guoco have been charged as securities to the bank for borrowings as disclosed in Note 4.

	 10.1	 The interest on term loan are charged at rates ranging from 4.76% to 4.95% (2023: 3.64% to 4.77%) per annum.

	 10.2	 The interest on revolving credit were charged at rates ranging from 4.26% to 4.45% (2023: 3.14% to 4.27%) per 
annum. 
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10.	 Borrowings  cont’d

	 10.3	 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

At 1 July
RM’000

Net changes 
from financing 

cash flows
RM’000

Amortisation 
of transaction 

costs
RM’000

At 30 June
RM’000

2024
Term loan 260,292 (28,200) 220 232,312
Revolving credit 11,000 (11,000) - -

271,292 (39,200) 220 232,312

2023
Term loan 260,075 - 217 260,292
Revolving credit 9,100 1,900 - 11,000

269,175 1,900 217 271,292

11.	Deferre d tax liability
 
	 Deferred tax liability is attributable to the following:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Investment properties 17,291 17,279

	 11.1	 Movement of deferred tax liability during the year

At
1 July 2022

Recognised
in profit 

or loss
(Note 16)

At 30 June 
2023/

1 July 2023

Recognised
in profit 

or loss
(Note 16)

At 
30 June 2024

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Investment properties 19,432 (2,153) 17,279 12 17,291

	 11.2	 Material accounting policy information

		  Where investment properties are carried at their fair value, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured 
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying values at the reporting date. 
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12.	 Revenue

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Rental income 22,431 21,394
Service charge 10,626 9,239
Car park income 2,495 1,799
Others 1,484 1,439

37,036 33,871

	 12.1	 Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

		  The following table shows revenue from performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 
the reporting date. The disclosure is only providing information for contracts that have a duration of more than 
one year.

2025 2026 2027 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Year ended 30 June 2024
Service charge 10,706 6,438 2,111 19,255

Year ended 30 June 2023
Service charge 8,573 5,757 2,784 17,114

		  The REIT applies the following practical expedients:

		  l	 exemption on disclosure of information on remaining performance obligation that have original expected 
durations of one year or less.

		  l	 exemption not to adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing 
component when the period between the transfer of a promised service to a customer and when the 
customer pays for that service is one year or less.

	 12.2	 Material accounting policy information

		  (i)	 Rental income

			   Tower REIT recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term as part of “revenue”.

		  (ii)	 Service charge

			   Service charge is recognised in profit or loss upon services being rendered to the tenants over the lease 
term.
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12.	 Revenue  cont’d

	 12.2	 Material accounting policy information  cont’d

		  (iii)	 Car park income

			   Car park income is recognised in profit or loss upon services being rendered.

		  (iv)	 Other revenue

			   Other revenue consists of income from hawker centre rental, naming right income and signage rental. Other 
revenue is recognised over time when services are delivered.

13.	 Property operating expenses

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Assessment 3,043 3,600
Service contracts and maintenance 4,753 4,753
Property management fees 377 348
Utilities 5,290 5,720
Others 3,497 2,833

16,960 17,254

	 Property management fees of RM377,280 (2023: RM348,039) were charged by property managers, in accordance with 
the Valuers, Appraisers and Estate Agent Acts 1981 with permissible discount.

14.	 Manager’s fees

	 Pursuant to the Deed constituting Tower REIT, the Manager’s fees consist of a base fee of up to 0.75% per annum of 
the gross asset value and a performance fee of up to 4% per annum of the net property income, but before deduction 
of property management fee, and an acquisition fee of 1% of acquisition price. These fees are based on the agreed 
scale rate.

	 2024 	 2023
RM’000 % RM’000 %

Base Fee and % of Gross Asset Value 1,617 0.20 1,621 0.20
Performance Fee and % of Net Property Income 728 3.35 594 3.35

2,345 2,215
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15.	 Trustee’s fee

	 Pursuant to the Deed constituting Tower REIT, the Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.03% (2023: 0.03%) per annum 
of the net asset value of Tower REIT with a cap of RM200,000 (2023: RM200,000). 

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Year ended 30 June 152 156

16.	 Taxation

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Current tax recovery
- RPGT refundable 16.1 (2,424) -

Deferred tax expense/(income)
- current year 12 (2,153)

12 (2,153)

Total taxation (2,412) (2,153)

Reconciliation of taxation
Income/(Loss) before tax 3,319 (19,753)

Income tax using Malaysian tax rate of 24% (2023: 24%) 797 (4,741)
Difference in tax rate arising from (gain)/loss on investment properties (17) 3,015
Non-deductible expenses 573 354
Effect of income exempted from tax (1,341) (781)
RPGT refundable 16.1 (2,424) -

Total taxation (2,412) (2,153)

	 Pursuant to Section 61A of the Income Tax Act, 1967, total income of the trust for a year of assessment shall be 
exempted from tax when the trust distributes 90% or more of its total income to its unitholders in the basis period for 
that year of assessment. Tower REIT fulfills the requirement and hence eligible for the tax exemption.

	 With effect from 1 January 2019, corporate RPGT rate on disposal of properties held more than 5 years is 10%.
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16.	 Taxation  cont’d

	 16.1	 The Inland Revenue Board (“IRB”) had on 7 December 2021, appealed to the Court of Appeal against the decision 
of the High Court, which was in favour of Tower REIT on the assessment of RPGT of RM2,423,983 in relation 
to the disposal of Menara ING in year 2014. The IRB had subsequently on 5 March 2024 withdrawn the appeal 
against the decision of the High Court. On 23 April 2024, the IRB issued a notice of tax refund to Tower REIT 
amounting to RM2,423,983 which is recognised as a tax recoverable during the financial year.

17.	 Earnings/(Loss) per unit

	 The calculation of earnings/(loss) per unit is based on net income/(loss) for the financial year of RM5,731,000 (2023: 
RM17,600,000) and the weighted average number of units in circulation, calculated as follows:

2024 2023
’000 ’000

Number of units circulation as at beginning of year 280,500 280,500
Issue of Rights Units during the year 17,291 -

Weighted average number of units circulation at end of year 297,791 280,500

Earnings/(loss) per unit (sen)
Realised 1.07 0.63
Unrealised 0.85 (6.91)

1.92 (6.28)

18.	 Distribution to unitholders

Gross/Net
distribution

per unit
Total

amount Date of payment
sen RM’000

Year ended 30.06.2024
2023 Final income distribution 0.27 757 30 August 2023
2024 Interim income distribution 0.23 645 28 February 2024

1,402

Year ended 30.06.2023
2022 Final income distribution 0.65 1,823 30 August 2022
2023 Interim income distribution 0.31 870 28 February 2023

2,693
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18.	D istribution to unitholders  cont’d

	 On 5 August 2024, the Directors of the Manager proposed a final income distribution of 0.77 sen (2023: 0.27 sen) 
per unit amounting to RM3,779,738 (2023: RM757,350) in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2024. The 
distribution will be recognised in the subsequent year. 

	 The total income distribution for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 which comprises the first interim income 
distribution of 0.23 sen (2023: 0.31 sen) per unit and the proposed final income distribution of 0.77 sen (2023: 0.27 
sen) per unit are from the following sources:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Rental income 37,036 33,871
Interest income 136 64
Other income 325 38

37,497 33,973
Less: Expenses (34,300) (32,193)

Realised income for the period/year 3,197 1,780
Previous year undistributed realised income 59,338 59,185

Total realised income available for distribution 62,535 60,965
Less: Proposed/declared income distribution (4,425) (1,627)

Balance undistributed realised income 58,110 59,338

Net income distribution
-	 Interim income distribution of 0.23 sen per unit paid on 28 February 2024  

(2023: 0.31 sen per unit paid on 28 February 2023) 645 870
-	 Final income distribution declared after the end of reporting date of 0.77 sen per 

unit payable on 30 August 2024 (2023: 0.27 sen per unit payable on 30 August 2023) 3,780 757

4,425 1,627
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18.	D istribution to unitholders  cont’d

2024 2023

Income distribution per unit
- First interim* (sen) 0.23 0.31
- Final* (sen) 0.77 0.27

1.00 0.58

	 *	 Withholding tax will be deducted for distributions made to the following categories of unitholders:

	 Withholding tax rate

2024 2023

Resident corporate   Nil^ Nil^

Resident non-corporate 10% 10%

Non-resident individual 10% 10%

Non-resident corporate 24% 24%

Non-resident institutional 10% 10%

	 	 ^	 To tax at prevailing corporate tax rate.

19.	 Management expense ratio

2024 2023

Management expense ratio (“MER”) (%) 0.70 0.57

	 The calculation of MER is based on total fees incurred by Tower REIT, including Manager’s fees, Trustee’s fees, audit 
fees, tax agent’s fees and administrative expenses, to the average net asset value during the financial year. Since the 
average net asset value is calculated on a quarterly basis, comparison of the MER of Tower REIT with that of other real 
estate investment trusts which use different basis of calculation, may not be accurate. 

20.	 Transactions with related parties

	 For the purposes of these financial statements, the parties which the Manager has the ability, directly or indirectly, to 
control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice 
versa, or where the Manager and the party are subject to common control are related parties. Related parties may be 
individuals or other entities.

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Rental charged 4,359 4,429
Interest income 136 64
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20.	 Transactions with related parties  cont’d

	 The above transactions have been established based on negotiated terms. The outstanding balances arising from the 
above transactions have been disclosed in Note 6 and 9 to the financial statements.

21.	 Financial instruments

	 21.1	 Categories of financial instruments

		  The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

		  (a)	 Amortised cost (“AC”); and
		  (b)	 Financial liability measured at amortised cost (“FL”).

Carrying
amount

AC/
(FL)

RM’000 RM’000

2024
Financial assets
Trade receivables 459 459
Other receivables and deposits 837 837
Cash and cash equivalents 26,846 26,846

28,142 28,142

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (232,312) (232,312)
Trade and other payables (17,027) (17,027)

249,339 249,339

2023
Financial assets
Trade receivables 487 487
Other receivables and deposits 474 474
Cash and cash equivalents 1,324 1,324

2,285 2,285

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (271,292) (271,292)
Trade and other payables (18,002) (18,002)

(289,294) (289,294)
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.2	 Net gain and loss arising from financial instruments

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Net gain/(loss) arising on:
- Financial assets at amortised cost (14) 64
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (13,374) (12,064)

(13,388) (12,000)

	 21.3	 Financial risk management

		  Risk management is integral to the whole business of Tower REIT. Tower REIT has a system of controls in place 
to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The 
Manager continually monitors Tower REIT’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance 
between risk and control is achieved.

		  Tower REIT has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

		  l	 Credit risk
		  l	 Liquidity risk
		  l	 Market risk

	 21.4	 Credit risk

		  Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss resulting from the failure of a tenant or counterparty to settle its financial 
and contractual obligations to the Trust, as and when they fall due. Cash and bank deposits are placed with 
financial institutions which are regulated.

		  Receivables 

	 	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

		  The Manager monitors tenants’ balances on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed by the Manager 
before lease agreements are entered into with tenants.

	 	 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

		  As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is 
represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.4	 Credit risk  cont’d

		  Receivables  cont’d

	 	 Recognition and measurement of impairment loss

		  Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 
are measured at their realisable values. The Manager uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the 
receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 30 days, which are deemed to have 
higher credit risk, are monitored individually.

		  The write off policy are as follows:

		  l	 A review of receivables’ delinquency must be conducted annually before the end of every financial period 
to ascertain any bad debts to be written off after reasonable steps for recovery have been taken and 
collectability is not probable or as dictated by regulatory requirements.

		  l	 For debts already written off, Lease Director and Finance Manager shall carry out an annual review of the 
customer’s records (where applicable) to assess whether the pursuit of recovery shall continue.

		  The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit losses for trade 
receivables.

Carrying
amount

Loss 
allowance

Net
balance

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2024
Not past due 170 - 170
Past due 31 – 60 days 5 - 5
Past due 61 – 90 days 93 - 93
Past due 91 – 120 days 44 - 44
>121 days 297 (150) 147

609 (150) 459

2023
Not past due 106 - 106
Past due 31 – 60 days - - -
Past due 61 – 90 days 135 - 135
Past due 91 – 120 days 10 - 10
>121 days 370 (134) 236

621 (134) 487
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.4	 Credit risk  cont’d

		  Receivables  cont’d

	 	 Recognition and measurement of impairment loss  cont’d

		  The movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year are shown below:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 134 134
Add: Allowance for impairment 150 -
Less: Amount written off (134) -

At 30 June 150 134

	 21.5	 Liquidity risk

		  Liquidity risk is the risk that Tower REIT will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Tower 
REIT’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables and borrowings.

		  Tower REIT maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the 
management to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall 
due.

	 	 Maturity analysis

		  The table below analyses the maturity profile of Tower REIT’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting 
period, based on undiscounted contractual payments.

Carrying
amount

Contractual
interest rate

Contractual
cash flows

Under 
1 year

1 – 2 
years

2 – 5
years

More than 
5 years

RM’000 %  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2024
Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Term loan 232,312 4.76 to 4.95 259,075 12,624 104,261 142,190 -
Tenants’ deposits 12,825 - 12,825 4,720 8,105 - -
Trade and other payables 4,202 - 4,202 4,202 - - -

249,339 276,102 21,546 112,366 142,190 -
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.5	 Liquidity risk  cont’d

	 	 Maturity analysis  cont’d

		  The table below analyses the maturity profile of Tower REIT’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting 
period, based on undiscounted contractual payments.  cont’d

Carrying
amount

Contractual
interest rate

Contractual
cash flows

Under 
1 year

1 – 2 
years

2 – 5
years

More than 
5 years

RM’000 %  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2023
Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Revolving credit 11,000 3.14 to 4.27 11,470 11,470 - - -
Term loan 260,292 3.64 to 4.77 297,864 12,416 12,416 273,032 -
Tenants’ deposits 11,446 - 11,446 2,329 9,117 - -
Trade and other payables 6,556 - 6,556 6,556 - - -

289,294 327,336 32,771 21,533 273,032 -

	 21.6	 Market risk

		  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and other prices will affect Tower 
REIT’s financial position or cash flows.

		  21.6.1	 Interest rate risk

			   Tower REIT’s exposure to changes in interest rate relates primarily to interest-earning financial assets and 
interest-bearing financial liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by the Manager on an ongoing basis with 
the primary objective of limiting the extent to which net interest expense could be affected by adverse 
movements in interest rates. 

			   Where necessary, Tower REIT adopts an appropriate hedging policy to minimise interest rate exposure. 
This may involve fixing certain portion of the interest payable on its underlying debt liabilities via financial 
derivatives or other suitable financial products. 
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.6	 Market risk  cont’d

		  21.6.1	 Interest rate risk  cont’d

	 	 	 Exposure to interest rate risk 

			   The interest rate profile of Tower REIT’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments, based on 
carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting year was:

2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Fixed rate instruments 
Financial assets
Deposit with a licensed bank 24,000 -
Short-term deposits 2,300 -

26,300 -

Floating rate instruments
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 461 479

Financial liabilities
Revolving credit - (11,000)
Term loan (232,312) (260,292)

(231,851) (270,813)

	 	 	 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

	 	 	 (a)	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

				    Tower REIT does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair value through profit or loss, 
and Tower REIT does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge 
accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the end of the financial period would not 
affect profit or loss.
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.6	 Market risk  cont’d

		  21.6.1	 Interest rate risk  cont’d

	 	 	 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis  cont’d

	 	 	 (b)	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
 
				    A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have 

increased/(decreased) equity and post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rate, remained constant. 

	 Equity/(Profit or loss)
100bp

increase
100bp

decrease
RM’000 RM’000

2024 (2,319) 2,319

2023 (2,708) 2,708

	 21.7	 Fair value information

		  The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables 
reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments. 
There are no material differences between the carrying amount and fair value.

		  The table below analyses other financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for 
which fair value is disclosed, together with their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statement of 
financial position.

Fair value of financial instruments 
carried at fair value

Fair value of financial instruments 
not carried at fair value

Total
fair

value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 RM’000 RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2024
Financial 

liabilities
Tenants’ deposits - - - - - - (12,461) (12,461) (12,461) (12,825)
Borrowings - - - - - - (232,312) (232,312) (232,312) (232,312)

- - - - - - (244,773) (244,773) (244,773) (245,137)
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21.	 Financial instruments  cont’d

	 21.7	 Fair value information  cont’d

Fair value of financial instruments 
carried at fair value

Fair value of financial instruments 
not carried at fair value

Total
fair

value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 RM’000 RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2023
Financial 

liabilities
Tenants’ deposits - - - - - - (10,980) (10,980) (10,980) (11,446)
Borrowings - - - - - - (271,292) (271,292) (271,292) (271,292)

- - - - - - (282,272) (282,272) (282,272) (282,738)

		L  evel 3 fair value

		  The following table shows the valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values within Level 3, as well 
as the key unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

	 	 Financial instruments not carried at fair value

Type Description of valuation technique and inputs used

Borrowings Discounted cash flows using a rate based on the current market rate of borrowing of Tower 
REIT at the reporting date.

		  The discount rates used above have incorporated credit risk of Tower REIT. The inputs for these risks are 
unobservable because there are no identical or similar instruments to benchmark to.

		  Fair value hierarchy

		  Tower REIT uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuation technique:

		  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that Tower REIT can access 
at the measurement date.

		  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly.

		  Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.



TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST102

NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

22.	 Capital management

	 Tower REIT’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Tower REIT’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise unitholders’ value.

	 The Manager monitors capital based on gearing ratio. Under the SC Guidelines on REITs, Tower REIT is required to 
maintain a gearing threshold of not exceeding 50% of total assets.

	 The gearing is calculated as gross borrowings divided by total assets, based on the latest valuations. Gross borrowings 
refer to the gross interest-bearing borrowings as set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Note 2024 2023
RM’000 RM’000

Gross borrowings 10 232,312 271,292

Total assets 837,618 808,234

Gearing 27.73% 33.57%

23.	 Operating segments 

	 Segment information is presented based on the information reviewed by Tower REIT’s Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (“CODM”) for performance assessment and resource allocation. For the purpose of the assessment of segment 
performance, the Trust’s CODM has focused on its investment properties. This forms the basis of identifying the 
operating segments of Tower REIT under MFRS 8, Operating Segments.

	 As each investment property is mainly used for commercial purposes, these investment properties are similar in terms 
of economic characteristics and nature of services. The CODM is of the view that Tower REIT only has one reportable 
segment – leasing of investment properties.

	 Accordingly, no operating segment information has been prepared as Tower REIT only has one reportable segment.

	 No geographical segment information has been prepared as all the investment properties of Tower REIT are located in 
Malaysia.
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23.	 Operating segments  cont’d

	 Major customers

	 The following are major customers with revenue equal or more than 10% of the REIT’s total revenue:

	 Revenue Property
2024 2023

RM’000 RM’000

British American Tobacco Malaysia 5,912 6,032 Menara Guoco
Hong Leong Group 4,359 4,429 Plaza Zurich, Menara Guoco & Menara HLX
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In the opinion of the Directors of the Manager, the financial statements set out on pages 70 to 103 are drawn up in 
accordance with MFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MFRS Accounting 
Standards”) and IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting 
Standards”) , so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of Tower REIT as at 30 June 2024 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Signed for and on behalf of the Manager 
GLM REIT Management Sdn. Bhd. 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of the Manager

NOORBAIZURA BINTI HERMEYNEY

YBHG DATO’ TAN ANG MENG

Kuala Lumpur

Date: 5 August 2024

STATEMENT BY
THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER
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I, Choo Chee Beng, being the person primarily responsible for the financial management of Tower Real Estate Investment 
Trust, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 70 to 103 are, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by 
virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Choo Chee Beng, MIA No.: 19087, at Kuala Lumpur on 5 August 2024.

Choo Chee Beng
Chief Financial Officer

Before me,

Pesuruhjaya Sumpah
Commissioner for Oaths
Kuala Lumpur

STATUTORY
DECLARATION
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We have acted as Trustee of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2024. To 
the best of our knowledge, GLM REIT Management Sdn. Bhd. (“the Manager”) has managed Tower REIT in accordance with 
the following:

(a)	 limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Manager and the Trustee under the Deed constituting Tower REIT 
(the “Deed”), the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, the Capital Markets and 
Services Act 2007, and other applicable laws; 

(b)	 valuation/pricing is carried out in accordance with the Deed and relevant regulatory requirements; and 

(c)	 the distribution of returns of 1.00 sen per unit for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 by Tower REIT is tied to and 
reflects the objectives of the fund.

For and on behalf of the Trustee
MTrustee Berhad 

NURIZAN JALIL 
Chief Executive Officer

Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Date: 5 August 2024

TRUSTEE’S
REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(ESTABLISHED IN MALAYSIA)
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, changes in net asset value 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies, as set 
out on pages 70 to 103. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Tower REIT 
as at 30 June 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with MFRS 
Accounting Standards as issued by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MFRS Accounting Standards”) and IFRS 
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of Tower REIT in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of Tower REIT for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements of Tower REIT as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 4 – Investment properties.

The key audit matter

Tower REIT owns investment properties comprising three commercial office buildings located in Malaysia. Investment 
properties represent the single largest category of assets on the statement of financial position.

These investment properties are measured at their fair values based on valuations performed by GLM REIT Management 
Sdn. Bhd. (“the Manager”) with the assistance of an external valuer. 

The valuation process involves significant judgment in determining the appropriate valuation methodology to be used, 
and the underlying assumptions to be applied. The fair values of the investment properties were derived using investment 
method, of which were highly sensitive to key assumptions, in particular those unobservable inputs as disclosed in Note 4 to 
the financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(INCORPORATED IN MALAYSIA)
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Key Audit Matters  cont’d

Valuation of investment properties  cont’d

Refer to Note 4 – Investment properties.  cont’d

The key audit matter  cont’d

This is a key audit matter because of the complexities involved in the valuation and the significant judgement required from 
us to evaluate the unobservable inputs. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In this area, our audit procedures, among others, include:

a)	 assessed the valuation methodology applied by Tower REIT against those applied by the external valuer for similar type 
of property;

b)	 considered the qualifications and competence of the external valuer and assessed the scope of work of the external 
valuer to determine whether the valuations were appropriate to be applied for financial reporting purposes; 

c)	 read the valuation reports produced by the external valuer and challenged the key assumptions applied by comparing 
such information against internal and external sources;

d)	 considered procedures to address the limitation or disclaimer included in the valuation report; and

e)	 determined that the rental data input used by the valuer is consistent with agreements with tenants.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Manager are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included Managers’ Report (but does not include the financial statements of Tower REIT and our auditors’ report thereon), 
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and the remaining parts of the annual report which are 
expected to be made available to us that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements of Tower REIT does not cover the other information and we do not and will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of Tower REIT, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of Tower REIT or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining parts of the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to the Directors of the Manager and take appropriate actions in accordance with 
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards of Auditing.

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(INCORPORATED IN MALAYSIA)
cont’d
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Manager are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of Tower REIT that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with MFRS Accounting Standards and IFRS Accounting Standards. The Directors of the Manager are 
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors of the Manager determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements of Tower REIT that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements of Tower REIT, the Directors of the Manager are responsible for assessing the ability of 
Tower REIT to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the Manager either intend to liquidate Tower REIT or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of Tower REIT as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

l	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of Tower REIT, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal 
control of Tower REIT. 

l	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors of the Manager.

l	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors of the Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of Tower REIT to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements of Tower REIT or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
Tower REIT to cease to continue as a going concern.

l	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of Tower REIT, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements of Tower REIT represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that gives a true and fair view.

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(INCORPORATED IN MALAYSIA)

cont’d
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  cont’d

We communicate with the Directors of the Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors of the Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors of the Manager, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of Tower REIT for the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the unitholders of Tower REIT, in accordance with the Trust Deed of Tower REIT and for no other 
purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT	 Chan Kah Mun
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758)	 Approval Number: 03350/01/2026 J
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountant

Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Date: 5 August 2024

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF TOWER REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(INCORPORATED IN MALAYSIA)
cont’d
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ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS AS AT 5 SEPTEMBER 2024

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF UNITHOLDERS

Size of Holding
No. of 

Unitholders
% of 

Unitholders
No. of 

Units Held
% of 

Units Held

Less than 100 19 0.74 530 0.00
100 – 1,000 395 15.39 261,875 0.05
1,001 – 10,000 1,118 43.55 6,166,725 1.26
10,001 – 100,000 812 31.63 30,657,245 6.24
100,001 – less than 5% of issued units 220 8.57 163,259,800 33.26
5% and above of issued units 3 0.12 290,528,825 59.19

2,567 100.00 490,875,000 100.00

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST UNITHOLDERS

Name of Unitholders No. of Units %

1. GLM Equities Sdn Bhd 163,548,350 33.32

2. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
- As Beneficial Owner (Life Non Par)

85,514,275 17.42

3. Associated Land Sendirian Berhad 41,466,200 8.45

4. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
- GSCO LLC for Asia Fountain Investment Company Limited

24,500,000 4.99

5. CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
- CIMB for Yong Yoon Kiong (PB)

14,000,000 2.85

6. Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad
- IVT (EPI) Account 1

10,302,250 2.10

7. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
- As Beneficial Owner (Life Par)

10,163,475 2.07

8. Lian Mong Yee @ Lian Mung Yee 6,971,825 1.42

9. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Poh Soon Sim (CEB)

5,397,875 1.10

10. Loh Cheng Yean 4,600,000 0.94

11. CIMB Group Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
- Exempt AN for DBS Bank Ltd (SFS)

4,255,675 0.87

12. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
- As Beneficial Owner (Shareholders Non Par Fund)

3,636,500 0.74

OTHER
INFORMATION
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ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS AS AT 5 SEPTEMBER 2024  cont’d

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST UNITHOLDERS  cont’d

Name of Unitholders No. of Units %

13. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Law Kiu Kiong

3,110,700 0.63

14. Liew Kon Mun 2,934,000 0.60

15. CGS International Nominees Malaysia (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Chen Yik (Penang-CL)

2,660,000 0.54

16. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- MCIS Insurance Berhad (Life Par FD)

2,254,700 0.46

17. Chan Chor Yook 2,210,000 0.45

18. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
- As Beneficial Owner (Life Ann Par)

1,785,000 0.36

19. Tan Kim Chuan 1,774,100 0.36

20. Mong Mei Sin 1,650,000 0.33

21. HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Liew Sun Yick

1,551,900 0.32

22. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Law Kiu Kiong (6000710)

1,454,800 0.30

23. Lim Sheau Theng 1,430,000 0.29

24. CGS International Nominees Malaysia (Asing) Sdn Bhd
- Exempt AN for CGS International Securities Singapore Pte Ltd (Retail Clients)

1,362,200 0.28

25. Ong Ah How @ Ong Beng Hwa 1,148,000 0.23

26. Ong Ee Nah 1,100,000 0.22

27. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- MCIS Insurance Berhad (Ann FD)

1,074,000 0.22

28. Lim Kew Seng 1,065,000 0.22

29. Chan Oi Chow 981,750 0.20

30. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
- As Beneficial Owner (Unitlinked BCF)

875,000 0.18

404,777,575 82.46

OTHER
INFORMATION
cont’d
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ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS AS AT 5 SEPTEMBER 2024  cont’d

MAJOR UNITHOLDERS

	 No. of Units Held 
Name of Unitholders Direct % Indirect %

1. GLM Equities Sdn Bhd 163,548,350 33.32 - -
2. Hong Leong Assurance Berhad 101,974,250 20.77 - -
3. Associated Land Sendirian Berhad 41,466,200    8.45 - -
4. HLA Holdings Sdn Bhd - - 101,974,250    20.77 #

5. Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited - - 101,974,250    20.77 #

6. HLCM Assets Sdn Bhd - - 41,466,200      8.45 @

7. Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad - - 112,276,500    22.87 *

8. GuocoLand (Malaysia) Berhad - - 163,548,350    33.32 **

9. GLL (Malaysia) Pte Ltd - - 163,548,350    33.32 **

10. GuocoLand Limited - - 163,548,350    33.32 **

11. GuocoLand Assets Pte Ltd - - 163,548,350    33.32 **

12. Guoco Group Limited - - 300,324,850    61.18 ^
13. GuoLine Overseas Limited - - 300,324,850    61.18 ^
14. GuoLine Capital Assets Limited - - 300,324,850    61.18 ^
15. Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad - - 153,742,700    31.32 *

16. HL Holdings Sdn Bhd - - 153,742,700    31.32 ~
17. Tan Sri Quek Leng Chan - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
18. Kwek Leng Beng - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
19. Kwek Holdings Pte Ltd - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
20. Hong Realty (Private) Limited - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
21. Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Ltd - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
22. Kwek Leng Kee - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
23. Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited - - 341,791,050    69.63 ^
24. Quek Leng Chye - - 341,791,050     69.63 ^

Notes:
#	 Held through Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
@	 Held through Associated Land Sendirian Berhad
*	 Held through subsidiaries 
**	 Held through GLM Equities Sdn Bhd 
^	 Held through subsidiaries and companies in which the major unitholder has an interest
~	 Held through Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad

OTHER
INFORMATION

cont’d
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OTHER
INFORMATION
cont’d

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AS AT 5 SEPTEMBER 2024

Subsequent to the financial year ended 30 June 2024, there is no change in the Directors’ interests in the units of Tower Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”) appearing in the Manager’s Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There was no material contract entered into by Tower REIT that involved the Directors of the Manager or major unitholders 
of Tower REIT during the financial year under review.

SANCTION AND/OR PENALTIES

There was no public sanction or penalty imposed on the Manager by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year
under review.
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twelfth Annual General Meeting (“Twelfth AGM”) of the unitholders of Tower Real Estate 
Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”) will be held at Wau Bulan Ballroom, Level 2, Sofitel Kuala Lumpur Damansara, No. 6, Jalan 
Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 30 October 2024 at 2.30 p.m. in order:- 

1. To lay before the meeting the audited financial statements of Tower REIT together with the reports of 
the Trustee and Auditors thereon for the financial year ended 30 June 2024.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following motions as Ordinary Resolutions, with 
or without modifications:

2. Ordinary Resolution 1
Proposed Renewal Of Unitholders’ Mandate To Allot And Issue Up To 98,175,000 New Units In Tower 
Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”), Representing Up To 20% Of The Existing Total Number Of 
Units Issued Of Tower REIT Of 490,875,000 Units (“Proposed Renewal Of Authority Mandate”)

“THAT pursuant to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Main 
Market of Bursa Securities”), and subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 2 below and the 
requisite approvals being obtained, approval be and is hereby given to the Directors of GLM REIT 
Management Sdn Bhd, the Manager of Tower REIT (the “Manager”), to issue new units from time to 
time to such persons and for such purposes as the Directors of the Manager may deem fit provided 
that the aggregate number of the new units to be issued, when aggregated with the number of units 
issued during the preceding 12 months must not exceed 20% of the total number of units issued of 
Tower REIT for the time being comprising 490,875,000 units and the Directors of the Manager be and 
are hereby also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for such new units 
on the Main Market of Bursa Securities;

AND THAT such approval shall continue to be in force until:

(i)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the unitholders at which time it will lapse, 
unless by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed; or

(ii)	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the unitholders in a unitholders’ meeting,

whichever is the earlier;

AND THAT such new units shall, upon allotment and issue, rank equally in all respects with the 
existing units except that the new units will not be entitled to any income distribution, right, benefit, 
entitlement and/or any other distributions that may be declared before the date of allotment and 
issue of such new units;

AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Manager and MTrustee Berhad, 
acting as Trustee of Tower REIT (the “Trustee”), acting for and on behalf of Tower REIT, to give 
effect to the Proposed Renewal of Authority Mandate with full powers to assent to any condition, 
modification, variation and/or amendment as they may deem fit in the best interest of Tower REIT 
and/or as may be imposed by the relevant authorities; AND FURTHER THAT the Directors of the 
Manager and the Trustee, acting for and on behalf of Tower REIT, are to implement, finalise, complete 
and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) in relation to 
the Proposed Renewal of Authority Mandate.” (Resolution 1)
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
cont’d

3. Ordinary Resolution 2
Proposed Increase In The Existing Total Number Of Units Issued Of Tower REIT From 490,875,000 
Units To A Maximum Of 589,050,000 Units Pursuant To The Proposed Renewal Of Authority 
Mandate (“Proposed Increase In Units Issued”)

“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 1 above and the requisite approvals being 
obtained, the total number of units issued of Tower REIT be and is hereby increased from 
490,875,000 units to a maximum of 589,050,000 units by the creation of up to 98,175,000 new units; 

AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Manager and the Trustee, acting 
for and on behalf of Tower REIT, to give effect to the Proposed Increase In Units Issued, with full 
power to assent to any condition, modification, variation and/or amendment as they may deem fit in 
the best interest of Tower REIT and/or as may be imposed by the relevant authorities; AND FURTHER 
THAT the Directors of the Manager and the Trustee, acting for and on behalf of Tower REIT, are to 
implement, finalise, complete and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as 
may be required) in relation to the Proposed Increase In Units Issued.” (Resolution 2)

4. Ordinary Resolution 3
Proposed Renewal Of Unitholders’ Mandate For Recurrent Related Party Transactions Of A Revenue 
Or Trading Nature With Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) And GuoLine Capital 
Assets Limited (“GCA”); And Persons Connected With HLCM And GCA (“Proposed Renewal Of RRPT 
Mandate”)

“THAT approval be and is hereby given for Tower REIT to enter into recurrent related party 
transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in Section 2.3 of the Circular to Unitholders 
dated 1 October 2024 (“Circular”), with HLCM and GCA; and persons connected with HLCM and GCA 
provided that such transactions are undertaken in the ordinary course of business, on commercial 
terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to and/or 
from the public, where applicable, and are not, detrimental to the minority unitholders of Tower REIT;

AND THAT such approval shall continue to be in force until:

(i)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the unitholders at which time it will lapse, 
unless by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed; or 

(ii)	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the unitholders in a unitholders’ meeting,

whichever is the earlier;

AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Manager and the Trustee, acting 
for and on behalf of Tower REIT, to give effect to the Proposed Renewal Of RRPT Mandate, with full 
power to assent to any condition, modification, variation and/or amendment as they may deem fit in 
the best interest of Tower REIT and/or as may be imposed by the relevant authorities; AND FURTHER 
THAT the Directors of the Manager and the Trustee, acting for and on behalf of Tower REIT, are to 
implement, finalise, complete and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as 
may be required) in relation to the Proposed Renewal Of RRPT Mandate.” (Resolution 3)
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

cont’d

5. To consider any other business of which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board of
GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd
(The Manager of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust)

CHIN MIN YANN (SSM PC No. 202008002583) (MAICSA 7034011)
Company Secretary

Kuala Lumpur
1 October 2024

Notes

1.	 For the purpose of determining unitholders’ eligibility to attend this meeting, only unitholders whose names appear in the Record of 
Depositors as at 22 October 2024 shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on their behalf.

2.	 Save for a unitholder who is an exempt authorised nominee, a unitholder entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to 
appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend, participate, speak and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a unitholder 
of Tower REIT. A unitholder who is an authorised nominee may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities 
account it holds. A unitholder who is an exempt authorised nominee for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account 
(“Omnibus Account”) may appoint any number of proxies in respect of the Omnibus Account.

3.	 Where two (2) or more proxies are appointed, the proportions of unitholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified in 
the instrument appointing the proxies, failing which, the appointments shall be invalid.

4.	 The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd at Level 32, Menara Hong Leong, 
No. 6, Jalan Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the 
meeting or adjourned meeting. 

5.	 Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all resolutions set out 
in this Notice will be put to vote by way of a poll.

Explanatory Notes 

1.	 Ordinary Resolution 1 - Proposed Renewal Of Authority Mandate

	 The Proposed Renewal Of Authority Mandate, if passed, will give a renewed mandate to the Directors of the Manager of Tower REIT 
to issue units of Tower REIT from time to time provided that the aggregate number of the new units to be issued, when aggregated 
with the number of units issued during the preceding 12 months must not exceed 20% of the total number of issued units of Tower 
REIT for the time being. The Proposed Renewal Of Authority Mandate, unless revoked or varied at a unitholders’ meeting, will expire 
at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the unitholders of Tower REIT.

	
	 As at to date, no new units of Tower REIT have been issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors of the Manager at the 

last AGM of Tower REIT held on 16 October 2023 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the forthcoming Twelfth AGM of Tower 
REIT. 

	
	 The Proposed Renewal Of Authority Mandate will enable the Directors of the Manager to take swift action in case of, inter-alia, a 

need for corporate exercises or in the event business opportunities or other circumstances arise which involve the issue of new units, 
and to avoid delay and cost in convening unitholders’ meetings to approve such issue of units.
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2.	 Ordinary Resolution 2 - Proposed Increase In Units Issued

	 The purpose of the Proposed Increase In Units Issued is to accommodate the issuance of such new units pursuant to the Proposed 
Renewal Of Authority Mandate.

3.	 Ordinary Resolution 3 - Proposed Renewal Of RRPT Mandate

	 The Proposed Renewal Of RRPT Mandate, if passed, will give a renewed mandate to Tower REIT to enter into recurrent related 
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for the day-to-day operations of Tower REIT, subject to the 
transactions being in the ordinary course of business and on terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those 
generally available to and/or from the public and are not, in the Manager’s opinion, detrimental to the minority unitholders of Tower 
REIT.

	
	 Detailed information on the Proposed Renewal Of RRPT Mandate is set out in the Circular to Unitholders dated 1 October 2024 which 

is available on Tower REIT’s website at https://www.tower-reit.com/investor-information/reports.



I/We 

NRIC/Passport/Company No.  of 

being a unitholder of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust (“Tower REIT”), hereby appoint 

NRIC/Passport No.  of 

or failing him/her 

NRIC/Passport No.  of 

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twelfth 
Annual General Meeting (“Twelfth AGM”) of unitholders of Tower REIT to be held at Wau Bulan Ballroom, Level 2, Sofitel Kuala Lumpur 
Damansara, No. 6, Jalan Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 30 October 2024 at 2.30 p.m. and at any 
adjournment thereof.

My/Our proxy/proxies is/are to vote on a poll as indicated below with an “X”:

NO. RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
1. As special business, to approve the ordinary resolution on the proposed renewal of unitholders’ 

mandate to allot and issue new units in Tower REIT
2. As special business, to approve the ordinary resolution on the proposed increase in the existing 

total number of units issued of Tower REIT
3. As special business, to approve the ordinary resolution on the proposed renewal of unitholders’ 

mandate for recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature with Hong Leong 
Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) and GuoLine Capital Assets Limited (“GCA”); and persons 
connected with HLCM and GCA

Dated this  day of  2024

	
	 Number of units held	 Signature(s) of Unitholder

CDS Account No.: 

NOTES:
1.	 For the purpose of determining unitholders’ eligibility to attend this meeting, only unitholders whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 

22 October 2024 shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and to vote on their behalf.
2.	 If you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy, insert the name(s) and address(es) of the person(s) desired in the space so provided.
3.	 If there is no indication as to how you wish your vote(s) to be cast, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.
4.	 A proxy may but need not be a unitholder of Tower REIT.
5.	 Save for a unitholder who is an exempt authorised nominee, a unitholder shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend, 

participate, speak and vote at the same meeting. Where a unitholder of Tower REIT is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry 
(Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with units of Tower REIT 
standing to the credit of the said securities account. A unitholder who is an exempt authorised nominee for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) 
securities account (“Omnibus Account”) may appoint any number of proxies in respect of the Omnibus Account. 

6.	 Where two (2) or more proxies are appointed, the proportions of unitholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified in the instrument 
appointing the proxies, failing which, the appointments shall be invalid (please see note 9 below).

7.	 In the case where a unitholder is a corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its Attorney.
8.	 All Forms of Proxy must be duly executed and deposited at the Registered Office of GLM REIT Management Sdn Bhd at Level 32, Menara Hong Leong, 

No. 6, Jalan Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting or 
adjourned meeting.

9.	 In the event two (2) or more proxies are appointed, please fill in the ensuing section:

Name of Proxies % of unitholdings to be represented

10.	 Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all resolutions set out in the Notice of 
the Twelfth Annual General Meeting will be put to vote by way of a poll.

Form of Proxy



The Company Secretary
GLM REIT MANAGEMENT SDN BHD
Registration No. 200401020808 (659312-H)
The Manager of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust
Level 32, Menara Hong Leong
No. 6, Jalan Damanlela
Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Affix
Stamp

1st Fold Here

Fold This Flap For Sealing

Then Fold Here



GLM REIT MANAGEMENT SDN BHD (Registration No. 200401020808 (659312-H))

The Manager of Tower Real Estate Investment Trust
Level 13, Menara Guoco
Damansara City
No. 6, Jalan Damanlela
Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 03-2726 1000
Fax : 03-2726 1001

https://www.tower-reit.com
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